
History of Robinson Barracks Elementary/Middle School 
 

Our original facilities were built in 1934.  They were to be used as the Southwest 
Regional Headquarters for the S.A. Storm Troopers, or brown shirts. Hermann 
Sippel, a German architect, designed the building.  His name is imprinted in a 
brick by the door near the main office.  
 
After World War II, which ended in 1945, our school was used as a military 
hospital, first for French Forces, and later for American Forces.  In 1950, the 
original building was converted to a school for the dependents of military 
members stationed in Stuttgart.  At first it was known as Stuttgart American 
Elementary School.  Several years later, when seventh and eighth grade 
classrooms were added, the school became known as Stuttgart Elementary and 
Junior High School.  
 
In 1959, when A.F.N. established its Stuttgart Branch at Robinson Barracks, more 
new classrooms were added.  The junior high school students, including ninth 
graders, were bused in from the surrounding military communities of Pattonville, 
Nellingen, Boeblingen, Patch, and from the German economy. With the 
completion of Ludwigsburg Middle School and Patch Junior High and High 
School in 1979, the student enrollment was significantly reduced, as 7th, 8th, and 
9th graders from Pattonville, Patch, and Boeblingen were reassigned to the new 
schools. Also, in the late 70's, a Center for Exceptional Children, or CEC, was 
added to our school.  This facility included pre-school and school age 
handicapped children from all over the greater Stuttgart Military Community. 
 
During the 1985-86 school years, both the gymnasium and the elementary wing 
were completely renovated. The cafetorium, a combination cafeteria and 
auditorium, was remodeled with a completely new and modernized kitchen and 
opened for our use during the fall of 1989. The spring of 1989 again brought more 
construction.  Students in the 7th and 8th grades attended classes at Valdez 
Barracks in Ludwigsburg from the spring of 1989 to the spring of 1991 while the 
final phase of the construction was being completed.   
 
On April 25, 1991, a ribbon-cutting ceremony was held to celebrate the opening 
of our new facility. The renovated building included several new regular 
classrooms and a new and completely equipped home economics lab, industrial 
arts facility, music room, kindergarten wing, special education wing, media 
center, a beautiful new playground, and a new supply and storage area as well as 
new administrative offices.    



 
Along with newly renovated facilities, school year 1990-91 also brought a new 
school name, Robinson Barracks Elementary and Middle School. Even then, 
renovation continued.  During the 1991-92 school year, a complete exterior 
remodeling project began for our main elementary building. This project was 
completed in August 1992.   During school year 1992-93 the school 
configuration changed due to the downsizing of troops in Europe.  The school 
became K-6, Robinson Barracks Elementary School (RBES).  Since school year 
1993-94, the K-6 configuration remained constant.  The junior high students, 
grades seven and eight, began attending Patch Junior and Senior High School in 
school year 1992-93. 
 
Current research cites that middle school students attending a K-8 school 
configuration rather than a 7-12 grade configuration performs better in school.  
Thus, during school year 2006-07, the seventh and eighth grade students 
returned to Robinson Barracks to join the K-6 grade levels. Once again, we are 
Robinson Barracks Elementary and Middle School. 


